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           1                  (HEARING COMMENCED AT 11:08 A.M.)

           2                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  Good morning,

           3         everyone.  We'll begin the call to order the

           4         monthly board meeting of the Bay Commission at

           5         11:07 or 8.  After recognizing the quorum, the

           6         first order of business is the approval of the

           7         previous minutes of April 26th, 2016.  Have all of

           8         our members had an opportunity to review the

           9         previous minutes and, if so, are there any

          10         comments, questions or corrections on the previous

          11         minutes?  Comments, questions or corrections?

          12                 (NO RESPONSE)

          13                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none,

          14         Commissioner MacQueen moved we approve the

          15         previous minutes.  Seconded by Commissioner

          16         DeRoche and Commissioner Campbell.  Discussion?

          17                 (NO RESPONSE)

          18                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all

          19         those that are in favor of approval of the

          20         previous minutes will say "Aye."

          21                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)

          22                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any

          23         opposed?

          24                 (NO RESPONSE)
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          25                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none

                                         

                                                                    4

           1         opposed and the motion carries.  The next order of

           2         business is the Executive Director's Report.  Do

           3         you have a report, Mr. Secretary?

           4                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Yes, I do.

           5                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay, proceed.

           6                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  The turbines came

           7         back on line on May 8th and have been running

           8         since then.  So we're back to normal in terms of

           9         their operation.  One of the turbines might be

          10         turned off.  When you came in, we have some work

          11         going on at the north end of the plant that

          12         required a crane coming in, so we shut down that

          13         turbine for a couple of hours in an abundance of

          14         caution.  And we are working on calculations with

          15         Goldwin to make sure that we agree on how much we

          16         should be reimbursed for the time that they were

          17         down and the loss of revenue that we experienced.

          18         So, we'll work on that over the next couple of

          19         weeks.

          20                 As of May 1st, we entered into the

          21         nitrogen removal permit season.  Both plants are

          22         reaching the levels of removal required.

          23         Generally, they're running well overall.  In
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          24         addition, their budgets are in great shape and

          25         we'll finish the year under budget.  We've
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           1         received notification that both plants will be

           2         receiving awards for 2015 treatment results, and

           3         one organization is the Narragansett Water

           4         Pollution Control Association.  Both Bucklin Point

           5         and Fields Point will receive a Silver Award.

           6                 There's a banquet tonight to give them

           7         their awards that we'll be attending, and the

           8         National Association of Clean Water Agencies will

           9         be awarding Bucklin Point a Gold Award and Fields

          10         Point a Silver Award.  And just as a reminder, a

          11         Gold Award for NACWA means you can have zero

          12         permit exceedences over the course of the year and

          13         for a silver, it has to be less than 5 out of the

          14         15 or 1,600 that you're subject to scrutinization

          15         every year.

          16                 So, we'll be acknowledging those

          17         achievements in an upcoming meeting.  Interceptor

          18         maintenance had a very good month.  No dry weather

          19         overflows were reported.  Everything is operating

          20         well in the collection system.  Engineering put

          21         together letters to Rhode Island DEM in response

          22         to DEM's comments on Phase III of the CSO program.

          23         A major point of that communication, or those
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          24         communications, was that the board reaffirmed that

          25         the plan that they voted on a year ago, which was
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           1         to divide Phase III up into four segments would

           2         stand, and that they were not as DEM suggested

           3         interested in combining IIIA and IIIB.

           4                 So that was transmitted to DEM over the

           5         last week or two, and we have not heard any

           6         feedback from them as yet.  In the meantime, we've

           7         been working with our consultant MWH on updating

           8         and converting the hydraulic model of the Bucklin

           9         Point sewers from the older model version to a

          10         newer version, which is really producing some

          11         interesting results as overflow quantities appear

          12         to -- you know, we're getting a better handle on

          13         those overflow quantities.  So that's a good

          14         thing.  So we can better size -- right size, if

          15         you will, other facilities that we will be

          16         designing.

          17                 And, in Cumberland, we'll be getting work

          18         on some easement clearing.  I want to thank

          19         Commissioner MacQueen for his assistance in

          20         working with the Cumberland administration and the

          21         homeowners in that area.  So, we'll get that work

          22         underway in short order.  The Greenville Avenue
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          23         sewer project in Johnston is progressing.  I saw

          24         some borings rigs out there this morning on my way

          25         in.  They're going to be doing the borings not
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           1         only for the ramps, but I guess that same crew

           2         will be doing the borings on the sewer route as

           3         well.

           4                 Our construction staff is pushing hard to

           5         get our state-of-the-art water quality science

           6         building ready for occupancy.  We expect that it

           7         will be in great shape for the dedication ceremony

           8         on June 21st, which will be in honor of Len

           9         Walker, Sr.  I've contacted the Walker family, and

          10         they're really excited about the honor.  In terms

          11         of staff moving in, that might be delayed a little

          12         bit.  One of the big things in any new building,

          13         especially in a building as sophisticated as the

          14         one we're going to be opening is the balancing of

          15         the air handling systems.  They're in there

          16         working on that as we speak, and when we get the

          17         green light that everything is operating as

          18         designed, we'll start moving in our own staff and

          19         all of their equipment.  That will take place in

          20         several waves or phases.

          21                 Construction and engineering are working

          22         jointly to get several projects out to bid in the
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          23         next couple of months.  These projects will all

          24         come before you for approval at either the June or

          25         September board meetings, depending on when the
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           1         bids actually come in.  A&F, their report shows us

           2         that the FY'16 budget is in excellent shape, and

           3         is running about 9 percent below projections, and

           4         we will finish the year under budget once again.

           5         So that's great news.

           6                 And the preliminary budget for FY'17 was

           7         presented in the finance committee this morning.

           8         I'll let Bob give you the report on that when the

           9         finance committee report comes before you shortly.

          10         The CIP program or the new plan for 2018 to 2022

          11         was presented to long range planning this morning,

          12         and I'll let Mario give you the update on that

          13         document at the appropriate time.

          14                 By the way, both of these required a lot

          15         of hard work, focus and dedication to prepare.  I

          16         want to thank our staff for their great work.

          17         And, finally, from A&F, we had a conference call

          18         with Standard & Poore's on Friday to give them an

          19         update on our financial position and, hopefully,

          20         we'll receive another strong rating.  An upgrade

          21         would be nice, but we'll see how it plays out over



file:///Z|/...202016/Board%20Meeting%20Minutes%205-24-2016/Board%20of%20Commissioners%20Meeting%20Minutes%205-24-2016.txt[6/7/2016 3:50:31 PM]

          22         the next couple of weeks.  The PP&R staff has

          23         dedicated a lot of time evaluating our renewable

          24         energy projects over the last month that included

          25         a site visit to the wind turbine locations, or
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           1         soon to be locations down in Coventry.

           2                 They inspected all the foundations and

           3         took a look at exactly where -- what sites will be

           4         ours.  And the equipment has arrived here in Rhode

           5         Island, and it is being transported or has been

           6         transported to the site, and they will start

           7         placing, you know, the towers and all the other

           8         necessary components into place over the next

           9         couple of weeks and maybe in 60 to 90 days, we'll

          10         actually have some energy being generated, but

          11         we'll keep tabs on that for you and keep you

          12         updated.

          13                 We continue negotiations with the solar

          14         energy firm, Coronal.  We received the latest

          15         version of the Power Purchase Agreement or PPA, as

          16         it's called yesterday.  I have not had a chance to

          17         look at it, I don't know that staff has either,

          18         but we're continuing to work on that.  And we've

          19         also had our experts in policy planning spend time

          20         reviewing legislation and budget articles that are

          21         floating around up on -- up in the State House,
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          22         which we think are going to impact renewable

          23         energy projects and not necessarily for the

          24         better.

          25                 So, we are preparing position papers and
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           1         we've been up to talk to people and express our

           2         concerns where appropriate and our support where

           3         appropriate so that the renewable energy products

           4         will continue to be available to those who are

           5         interested in pursuing them.  In executive, our

           6         efforts have included the lien sale on May 5th.

           7         We ended up only having to auction off nine

           8         properties, and we collected a total of $323,000

           9         from that effort.  Joanne has spent countless

          10         hours reviewing dozens of bills, talking to people

          11         in the General Assembly, preparing position papers

          12         and testifying before committees.  She'll have a

          13         report for you later in the meeting.

          14                 We took part in the judging of the Rhode

          15         Island Science Fair.  Jamie goes out to that every

          16         year, and is always amazed at how talented and

          17         intelligent our young people are here in Rhode

          18         Island.  So, that's a good thing for us to

          19         participate in.  Cynthia successfully concluded

          20         another year of her watershed explorer's program
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          21         with the annual field trip and field day last

          22         Friday.  They had a nice day for that down in

          23         Goddard Park, and we hosted numerous tour groups

          24         from schools and whatever at the Waste Water

          25         Treatment Facilities.  As the weather has improved
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           1         so have the -- so has the traffic through the

           2         plant in terms of tours.

           3                 The poster contest took place in the last

           4         few weeks, some winners were selected.  We'll

           5         generate a calendar as we have in the past to

           6         honor those young people.  And we have several

           7         important meetings coming up in the next week or

           8         so.  Lori and I will meet with Janet Coit and

           9         Terry Gray from DEM.  We do that quarterly just to

          10         kind of keep up to date, and a line of

          11         communication open.  That has worked out very well

          12         for us in the last year or two.

          13                 The Stormwater Regional Study Committee

          14         will meet next Tuesday here in this room in the

          15         morning to try to come to some sort of a

          16         conclusion on how stormwater in the area should be

          17         handled over the next several years, and Jamie and

          18         I will be meeting with our Congressman Langevin

          19         and Cicilline to discuss issues with regard to

          20         bills that are pending in Washington.  We already
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          21         met with Senator Reed and Senator Whitehouse when

          22         we were in Washington back in April.  Congressman

          23         Langevin and Cicilline were not available that

          24         day, so we're going to catch up with them probably

          25         in the next week or two when they're back on
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           1         recess for a week or so.  That is it, Mr.

           2         Chairman.  I'll take any questions.

           3                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any

           4         questions?  Commissioner Campbell?

           5                 COMMISSIONER CAMPBELL:  Where are the

           6         windmills going to be located?

           7                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  They're actually in

           8         Coventry near the old Picillo Pig Farm.  I don't

           9         know if Tom wants to give any more of a detailed

          10         explanation on that.

          11                 MR. UVA:  I was actually quite lost when

          12         we were driving through the woods down there in

          13         that area.  But one turbine is on Picillo Pig Farm

          14         Land that was a Brownfield site and two of them

          15         were off of 117, wooded area.  It's private

          16         property.

          17                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  City people tend to

          18         get lost out in the woods, Bruce, I've found that

          19         out.
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          20                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  So, having asked that

          21         question, does anyone have any interest in going

          22         down there to see these, or do you want to wait

          23         'til they're erected?  Does anybody want to see

          24         the progress?  Do we just wait 'til they're

          25         finished?
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           1                 COMMISSIONER CAMPBELL:  It would

           2         interesting to see the windmills go up here.  It

           3         would be interesting to see progress.

           4                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  All right.  So, do

           5         you want to try to schedule something for, you

           6         know, the beginning of June or something?  Do you

           7         want to do that?

           8                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Sure.  Why don't we

           9         reach out to the developer to see what his

          10         schedule is for erecting these units, and then we

          11         can let the board members know through the board

          12         website what's going on.  You know, they might be

          13         doing some work the next two days and then stop

          14         for a couple of days for whatever reason.  They're

          15         waiting for something to come in or the crane

          16         operator gets sick.  It's hard to tell sometimes.

          17                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  All right.  Let's see

          18         if we can organize something and then we'll

          19         contact everyone, and once we get a sense of who
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          20         wants to go then we'll arrange transportation,

          21         okay.  All right any other questions regarding the

          22         Executive Director's Report?

          23                 (NO RESPONSE)

          24                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, then we

          25         will move along for Committee Reports and Action

                                         

                                                                    14

           1         Items Resulting.  The first committee reporting is

           2         the construction, engineering and operations

           3         committee.  Commissioner MacQueen, do you have a

           4         report for us today?

           5                 COMMISSIONER MACQUEEN:  Yes, I do.  We

           6         have two of them that were approved by the board.

           7         Review and Approval of Resolution 2016:11, Award

           8         of Contract 304.62C-East Providence Interceptor

           9         Improvements Recommendation for Award.

          10                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to

          11         approve Resolution 2016:11, Award of Contract

          12         304.62C-East Providence Interceptor Improvement.

          13                 COMMISSIONER BENNETT:  Second.

          14                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Mr. Director, do you

          15         want to proceed with an explanation.

          16                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Sure.  We had two

          17         bidders on this project.  The bids came in on May

          18         4th, and Insituform Technologies was the low
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          19         bidder at $1,374,117.  The work consists of

          20         cleaning and televising as well as the lining

          21         approximately 3,300 feet of pipe of various sizes,

          22         some manhole rehabilitation and replacement -- 120

          23         feet of replacement of a 20-inch force main under

          24         the Providence and Worcester Railroad Tracks.

          25         Insituform is a company well-known to us.  They've
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           1         done many projects successfully for the

           2         Narragansett Bay Commission.

           3                 We recommend that you approve Resolution

           4         2016:11, as they are the lowest responsive and

           5         responsible bidder.  They do have MBE and EEO

           6         requirements that the Department of Administration

           7         needs to approve, but other than that, they're

           8         good to go as long as it's okay with you.

           9                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  So, Commissioner

          10         Montanari, you second the motion; right?  We have

          11         a motion.  We have a second for approval.  Further

          12         discussion on Resolution 2016:11?  Further

          13         discussion?

          14                 (NO RESPONSE)

          15                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of

          16         those that are in favor will say, "Aye."

          17                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)

          18                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any opposed
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          19         to the matter?

          20                 (NO RESPONSE)

          21                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none

          22         opposed and the motion carries.  Commissioner

          23         MacQueen, further report?

          24                 COMMISSIONER MACQUEEN:  Yes.  We have

          25         Review and Approval of Resolution 2016:12;
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           1         Authorization for Funding NBC Energy Efficiency

           2         Improvements.

           3                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion by

           4         -- Commissioner MacQueen approves Resolution

           5         2016:12, also seconded by Commissioner Montanari.

           6         Mr. Secretary?

           7                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Yes.  This is part of

           8         our ongoing effort to become energy efficient,

           9         reduce our overall electrical usage and obtain 100

          10         percent of power needs from renewal sources.  So,

          11         in that continuing effort we received two

          12         proposals from Energy Source.  They're a National

          13         Grid Energy Solutions Partner for indoor and

          14         outdoor lighting upgrades at the Fields Point and

          15         Bucklin Point treatment plants.  It involves

          16         replacing existing lighting systems with LED

          17         systems that use less energy and last longer;
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          18         typically, up to ten years.  There are incentives

          19         for us to participate in this program.

          20                 So the project cost at Fields Point is

          21         estimated to be -- I'm going to round the numbers

          22         off here a little bit, $781,000.  National Grid is

          23         going to give us $131,000 incentive to do the

          24         work.  So the net cost to us is just under

          25         $650,000 at Fields Point.  That's a payback of
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           1         about 4.3 years.  At Bucklin Point the project

           2         cost is $267,000.  The incentive from National

           3         Grid is $64,000, and that means the final cost to

           4         the NBC will be $203,000.  And that's at 2.8-year

           5         payback.

           6                 Doing this work will reduce our electrical

           7         demand -- our electrical energy demand by about

           8         5.8 percent and save us approximately $222,000 per

           9         year in power cost.  So, because this is -- has a

          10         really quick payback, it makes a lot of sense with

          11         our overall energy game plan.  We request your

          12         approval of Resolution 2016:12 in the amount of

          13         $852,590.  That's the cost to do both plans after

          14         the incentive.

          15                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  So you have heard an

          16         explanation regarding Resolution 2016:12.

          17         Questions; Commissioner Carlino?
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          18                 COMMISSIONER CARLINO:  After discussion, I

          19         will be recusing myself.

          20                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Let the record

          21         reflect that Commissioner Carlino recuses himself

          22         from consideration of Resolution 2016:12.

          23         Commissioner Handy?

          24                 COMMISSIONER HANDY:  How many lights are

          25         we talking about here at Fields Point?
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           1                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  How many lights?

           2                 COMMISSIONER HANDY:  Yeah.

           3                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  Wow, there's a long

           4         list.  I don't have an actual number for you, but

           5         it's --

           6                 COMMISSIONER HANDY:  A lot more than I

           7         would have expected.

           8                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  I was surprised

           9         myself, but there's a lot of units that they're

          10         going to be changing out that will save us.

          11                 COMMISSIONER CAMPBELL:  Would that include

          12         lights, like, in offices?

          13                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Yes.  It's a complete

          14         redo.  And, so, the payback is extraordinary, you

          15         know.  It's for four years.  So, if we're saving

          16         $222,000 a year for an $800,000 investment, I
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          17         mean, I think that makes a lot of sense; right?

          18                 COMMISSIONER HANDY:  Great.  Fantastic.

          19                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Further discussion on

          20         the matter?

          21                 (NO RESPONSE)

          22                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of

          23         those that are in favor of resolution 2016:12 will

          24         say, "Aye."

          25                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
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           1                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are this any opposed?

           2                 (NO RESPONSE)

           3                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none

           4         opposed, that motion carries.  Further reports,

           5         Commissioner MacQueen?

           6                 COMMISSIONER MACQUEEN:  That's all I have.

           7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  That completes the

           8         CEO Committee Report.  The next Committee

           9         Reporting is the Finance Committee.  Commissioner

          10         Andrade, do you have a report for us today?

          11                 COMMISSIONER ANDRADE:  I have a very short

          12         report, Mr. Chairman.

          13                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Proceed.

          14                 COMMISSIONER ANDRADE:  As the Executive

          15         Director said, the committee was presented with a

          16         detailed preliminary operating budget this
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          17         morning, and we reviewed it.  The results for the

          18         year are very good.  The budget for next year

          19         looks fine, but it is not finalized.  It will be

          20         finalized by the next finance committee meeting in

          21         June where it will be presented and then presented

          22         in detail to the full board at the June meeting

          23         for their approval.  So that's the report of the

          24         finance committee.

          25                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Does that conclude
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           1         your report?

           2                 COMMISSIONER ANDRADE:  It does.

           3                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you very much.

           4                 COMMISSIONER HANDY:  Is possible to get a

           5         draft?

           6                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  You don't have it?

           7                 COMMISSIONER HANDY:  No, I wasn't here for

           8         the finance committee meeting.

           9                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I'm sorry, yes.  Is

          10         there anyone that does not have a copy of the

          11         draft financial?

          12                 COMMISSIONER HANDY:  Thank you.

          13                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  So, if anyone would

          14         like a hard copy, as the chairman indicated, Karen

          15         has some.
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          16                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay, moving right

          17         along.  Next committee reporting is long range

          18         planning committee.  Commissioner Carlino?

          19                 COMMISSIONER CARLINO:  Long range planning

          20         met at 10:00 today, and we were presented with the

          21         five-year Capital Improvement Plan, fiscal year of

          22         2018 to 2022, and we reviewed and approved

          23         Resolution 2016:13.  We had a very good

          24         presentation, and we're going to all get

          25         abbreviated version of the presentation right now.
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           1                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Sherri, are you going

           2         to make that abbreviated presentation?

           3                 MS. ARNOLD:  Yes.

           4                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  All right.

           5                 MS. ARNOLD:  So, you have before you the

           6         FY18:22 CIP.  If anyone would like a copy, Karen

           7         has additionals.  This year's plan identifies 37

           8         projects at an estimated cost of 313.8 million.

           9         Additional costs of 40.4 million in FY'17.  A

          10         couple of things to -- that were included in this

          11         year's CIP -- all of the phases of the project

          12         were included, inclusive planning, design and

          13         construction as one project.  Project priorities

          14         were refined into four categories, A through D,

          15         and that discussion begins on page 5.  The
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          16         document discusses operating revenue, expense and

          17         savings impacts for each project.  It includes

          18         funding information for the CIP, and that begins

          19         on page 13.

          20                 Phase III has been separated into four

          21         phases, Phase A, B, C and D, and that begins on

          22         page 9.  And, finally, the majority or 86 percent

          23         of the expenditures relate to the CSO Phase III

          24         facility.

          25                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you.  So you've
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           1         heard a very abbreviated explanation of what was a

           2         protracted discussion on the Capital Improvements

           3         Program for the next five years.  I'd encourage

           4         all of our members to get familiar with this

           5         document.  For me, I think this is the most

           6         important document that you should be familiar

           7         with every year.  So, are there any questions?

           8         Are there any questions regarding the Capital

           9         Improvement Program FY2018 through FY2022?

          10                 (NO RESPONSE)

          11                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay, well, get

          12         familiar with it because we'll be referring to it

          13         all year long.  Was there a motion, Commissioner

          14         Carlino, to approve Resolution 2016:13?
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          15                 MR. CARLINO:  It was approved by the

          16         committee.

          17                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Was there a second to

          18         that motion?  Commissioner MacQueen seconded that

          19         motion.  Discussion again on the Capital

          20         Improvements Program?  Hearing none, all those

          21         that are in favor of approval of Resolution

          22         2016:13 please say, "Aye."

          23                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)

          24                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any

          25         opposed?
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           1                 (NO RESPONSE)

           2                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none

           3         opposed, and that motion carries as well.  Thank

           4         you very much Commissioner Carlino.  Do you have a

           5         further report?

           6                 COMMISSIONER CARLINO:  That is all.

           7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  Moving right

           8         along.  Personnel Committee, Commissioner

           9         Campbell, there was no committee report.  Rules

          10         and regs, there was no report.  Ad hoc executive

          11         committee did not meet.  We're moving right along.

          12                 (ONE OF THE COMMISSIONERS EXITED THE ROOM)

          13                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Was it something I

          14         said?  All right.  The Compensation Committee did
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          15         not meet.  All right.  Joanne, do you have a

          16         legislative report for us today?

          17                 MS. MACERONI:  Yes, I do.

          18                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay, proceed.

          19                 MS. MACERONI:  You should all have on your

          20         iPad -- the two things I'd like to point out --

          21         there are two revised budget articles that we have

          22         been reviewing and preparing testimony on.  The

          23         first Article II has to do with the public finance

          24         management board.  There were several bills that

          25         were introduced throughout the session dealing
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           1         with this board, and I think to date all the

           2         changes will be made in Article II.  What it does

           3         is it expands the purpose of the board.

           4                 Prior to -- up to now, the board has been

           5         an advisory board.  If a city or town or an agency

           6         needed their financial expertise, it went to --

           7         they contacted them.  Now, their duties have been

           8         expanded to actually review all the debt issuance

           9         in the state.  We have no problem with expanding

          10         the purpose of the board.  We don't have any

          11         problem with enhancing the debt issuance and

          12         reporting requirements that are now in this

          13         amended statute.
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          14                 We did suggest one amendment in the

          15         article that said that we have to give all our

          16         information to them by the end of the fiscal year,

          17         which physically is impossible if you're looking

          18         at that fiscal year.  We asked them for a 90-day

          19         extension.  Everybody seems to be on board with

          20         that.  I think it was just an oversight on their

          21         part.  What we do have a concern with -- well,

          22         first of all, it also requires them to undertake a

          23         debt affordability study.  We don't have any

          24         problem with participating in the study.  What we

          25         do have a problem with is, the study is to include
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           1         recommended limits for the debt capacity of each

           2         state and quasi-municipal agencies.

           3                 We feel that this limit, this recommended

           4         limit should only be for tax supporting entities,

           5         not self-supporting entities such as the NBC

           6         because we already have constraints on our debt

           7         issuance.  We have the oversight of the PUC.  We

           8         have our trust indenture.  So we are already very

           9         heavily regulated in this respect.  We hope to

          10         meet with the general treasurer to discuss this

          11         issue further with him.

          12                 The next article which, again, has been

          13         revised is the article on renewable energy, in
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          14         particular net metering.  Staff has reviewed that

          15         article, and we do have some concerns as it may

          16         affect our present projects and future projects.

          17         We have a concern with the reduction of net

          18         metering in 2040, and the effect it would have on

          19         our projects now towards the end of their life.

          20         Also, we have a concern with a 2016 deadline,

          21         which grandfathers the net metering rate for

          22         current projects.  Meaning, our wind turbines

          23         across the street, but it will have an impact on

          24         projects that we are now considering because if

          25         they're not up by 2016, they can't be
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           1         grandfathered in.

           2                 So, their senate finance will be meeting

           3         tomorrow on this article, and Tom Uva will be

           4         going up to testify.  And we hope to meet our --

           5         make our positions known on both articles.  And

           6         the rest of the report is our bills that I

           7         reported out before, and I have given you the

           8         status of them.  So I've been up at the State

           9         House talking to sponsors, testifying when

          10         necessary and, so far, all the bills that we have

          11         been following are still in committee, which is a

          12         good sign if we don't like them.  But there's
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          13         nothing here that if they don't come out of

          14         committee we will be hurt by.  But, again, we have

          15         at least a couple more weeks of session, so we

          16         don't know what will happen in those couple of

          17         weeks.  A lot can happen.

          18                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Joanne that net

          19         metering bill that you're following that impacts

          20         our future energy projects or projects after 2016,

          21         is that a bill that takes effect upon its passage

          22         or takes effect in 2017, do you know?

          23                 MS. MACERONI:  No, I think the bill takes

          24         -- it's part of the budget article and,

          25         truthfully, Chairman, I'm not sure.  I'm assuming
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           1         it takes effect upon passage.

           2                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  So, if they adjourn,

           3         as I'm hearing they will early June and our wind

           4         energy project in Coventry is not actually

           5         operating, are we impacted by that?

           6                 MS. MACERONI:  No, because that deadline

           7         is December 2016.

           8                 MR. UVA:  The deadline is --

           9                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I guess that's what

          10         I'm missing.

          11                 MR. UVA:  The deadlines are based upon

          12         when you apply for the interconnect with National
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          13         Grid.  So that's the cut off.  So, if the project

          14         was submitted -- the interconnect application and

          15         paid for -- and we're not sure if it requires

          16         National Grid approval, but we think that that is

          17         all -- that project is approved.

          18                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  And that wind energy

          19         project in its entirety?

          20                 MR. UVA:  So that one should be all set.

          21         Any other project that we've proposed, if it's not

          22         done by the end of this year under this

          23         legislation, it could jeopardize the rates that we

          24         have.  So, what they're essentially -- the

          25         legislation is essentially trying to eliminate net
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           1         metering in favor of distributed generation

           2         contracts because National Grid bids on those

           3         contracts.  They're for 10 to 15-year contracts,

           4         which isn't the life of a renewable energy

           5         project, which is 20 to 25 years.  So you don't

           6         know how the end of your project is going to turn

           7         out.  It's really going to slow down renewable

           8         energy in the state if this moves forward.  And

           9         some of the points that we'll make tomorrow.

          10                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  It won't impact the

          11         wind energy project, but --
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          12                 MR. UVA:  No, that one -- the wind energy

          13         project here and the WED project should be all

          14         set.  Those should be okay.

          15                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Which project?

          16                 MR. UVA:  The WED, the wind turbine in

          17         Coventry should be okay.

          18                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  But the solar --

          19                 MR. UVA:  The solar project, if it isn't

          20         connected and done by the end of 2016, it would be

          21         in jeopardy.

          22                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.

          23                 MR. UVA:  So that's why we're hopeful that

          24         the senate and house will take action to get rid

          25         of this amendment.  I was at an environmental
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           1         business council meeting and Office of Energy

           2         Resources gave a presentation on it, and I

           3         commented in my question and answers that it looks

           4         as though the document was written by a lobbyist

           5         for National Grid because they're really trying to

           6         get rid of the net metering in favor of

           7         distributed generation contracts.  And that's

           8         going to hurt all the activities that are going on

           9         in the state.  What I'm trying to get them to

          10         understand is from the time you start thinking

          11         about it, to doing the feasibility, planning,
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          12         getting financing -- and actually building it

          13         takes years.  And you can't just phase that out at

          14         the end of this year, at the end of six months

          15         away from now.

          16                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  So, closer to home on

          17         the Coronal Project, right, when will they

          18         actually apply for a --

          19                 MR. UVA:  You have to have the site.  So

          20         as soon as they have a site, then they can apply.

          21                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  And, today, they

          22         don't have a site; right?

          23                 MR. UVA:  They have a development team

          24         that when the PPA is signed, there is a so many

          25         day window that they have to come in with sites
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           1         for our approval.

           2                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  A little scary,

           3         right?

           4                 MR. UVA:  So we have to talk about that;

           5         you and I and the executive director have to make

           6         a decision this week.

           7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  All right.  Great.

           8         All right.  Thank you, Joanne.  Are there any

           9         questions for Joanne with regard to the

          10         legislative report?
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          11                 (NO RESPONSE)

          12                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay, moving right

          13         along.  We have the citizens Advisory Committee

          14         report.  Howard, where are you?  There you are.

          15         Do you have a report for us today?

          16                 MR. SCHACTER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          17                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  No, thank you.

          18                 MR. SCHACTER:  We had a very productive

          19         meeting this week, thanks to the presence and

          20         participation of Ray Marshall who handled --

          21         basically handled the meeting giving everybody an

          22         update on everything pertaining to NBC.  He then

          23         was very involved with the question and answers.

          24         This is really the first time that we've had this

          25         kind of a one-on-one personal overview, and we

                                         

                                                                    31

           1         really appreciate it and it was handled well.

           2         Thank you, Ray.

           3                 SECRETARY MARSHALL:  You're welcome.

           4                 MR. SCHACTER:  It was well done, and

           5         that's the extent of it.  In fact, it was so good

           6         we overran our time frame, which is a good

           7         indication how well he did and how he responded.

           8                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you very much.

           9         Does that conclude your report?

          10                 MR. SCHACTER:  That concludes my report.
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          11         Thank you.

          12                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  Moving along,

          13         the Chairman's Report; a couple of things.  So the

          14         next board meeting is on June 21st, and consistent

          15         with that, we're going to dedicate the Water

          16         Quality Building of course, you know, to the

          17         memory of Commissioner Len Walker.  So at the same

          18         time -- I don't know exactly where we're going to

          19         do this, Jamie will tell us -- we do want to

          20         schedule that group photograph.  So it's going to

          21         be done on June 21st.  Where, Jamie?  Here?

          22         There?

          23                 MS. SAMONS:  We're weighing options at

          24         this moment.  So probably an indoor shot and an

          25         outdoor shot.
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           1                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  So we're going

           2         to do that.  The other thing I want to report

           3         today, we're a little busy this month, but the

           4         only thing I think which is note worthy for

           5         today's meeting is that we had a protracted

           6         meeting with SIMS Metal Corporation here and

           7         ProvPort Group were here also with regard to the

           8         easement to pass through what is now Narragansett

           9         Bay Commission property and the resolution to the



file:///Z|/...202016/Board%20Meeting%20Minutes%205-24-2016/Board%20of%20Commissioners%20Meeting%20Minutes%205-24-2016.txt[6/7/2016 3:50:31 PM]

          10         railroad crossing problem that we have.

          11                 The reason why we continue to have

          12         commercial traffic running in front of our

          13         buildings here is we have not been able to reach

          14         resolution with Providence Worcester Railroad

          15         regarding the crossing of Providence Worcester

          16         Railroad over our own property, by the way.  So

          17         there are easement issues that need to be

          18         resolved.  There are what Providence Worcester

          19         Railroad is concerned -- what they said public

          20         safety issues, even though it's primarily a

          21         private road used solely for SIMS Metal Management

          22         and ProvPort.  It appears we're very close to a

          23         resolution on that matter.

          24                 It is our hope that that matter gets

          25         resolved in the short-term so that we can now
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           1         close these gates and prevent traffic from flowing

           2         across the Administration Building here and our

           3         new water quality building and our operations

           4         building.  So this will become more of a

           5         pedestrian-style campus that I've envisioned for a

           6         very long time.  I'd like to see this come to

           7         fruition.  Consistent with that, we'll then

           8         schedule the final coating of paving over the

           9         street so it will be a brand new street without
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          10         the heavy trucks and the glass and screws and

          11         everything else that's being littered on our road.

          12                 So we're very close to a resolution.  I

          13         have to say that ProvPort has been extremely

          14         cooperative in resolution to the matter and SIMS

          15         will come along kicking and screaming, but they

          16         will come along, I think, in the end.  So it's

          17         close to a resolution, and I'm hoping that by the

          18         time June 21st roles along, I'll be able to report

          19         to you that we have a final resolution to the

          20         problem and give you a final date as to when these

          21         gates can get closed.  Everybody seems to be

          22         moving in the right direction on that.

          23                 That would be it for the Chairman's

          24         Report, unless you have some questions regarding

          25         this particular matter.
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           1                 (NO RESPONSE)

           2                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  Moving right

           3         along.  Is there any new business to come before

           4         the board?  Any new business at all?

           5                 (NO RESPONSE)

           6                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Other business of any

           7         kind; just old, new?

           8                 (NO RESPONSE)
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           9                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Since Commissioner

          10         Rotella is not here today, I'm going to look to

          11         Commissioner Andrade to move to adjourn.

          12                 COMMISSIONER ANDRADE:  Motion to adjourn.

          13                 COMMISSIONER MACQUEEN:  Second.

          14                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  And seconded by

          15         Commissioner MacQueen and Commissioner DiChiro.

          16         All in favor of adjournment will say, "Aye."  Are

          17         there any opposed?

          18                 (NO RESPONSE)

          19                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none

          20         opposed and the motion carries.  Thank you very

          21         much.

          22                 (HEARING CONCLUDED AT 11:45 A.M.)

          23

          24

          25
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           1                        C-E-R-T-I-F-I-C-A-T-I-O-N

           2         STATE OF RHODE ISLAND AND PROVIDENCE PLANTATIONS
                     PROVIDENCE, SC.
           3

           4                 I, SALLY BRASSARD, do hereby certify that

           5         the foregoing is a true, accurate, and complete

           6         transcript of my notes taken at the above-entitled

           7         proceeding.

           8                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my
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           9         hand this 27th day of May, 2016.

          10

          11

          12

          13

          14                          ________________________________
                                      SALLY BRASSARD, CSR/RPR
          15                          NOTARY PUBLIC
                                      MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:  1/16/17
          16

          17

          18

          19

          20

          21

          22

          23

          24

          25
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